TG Dangi &5 Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of
Transindia Freight Services Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and Notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of Material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hercinafter referred to as “  Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2025, its Loss including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ¢nded on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities_in"acé_c_irdance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believésthat the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements. s b
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our
report,

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Board of Director’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report therecon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone finanéial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting.iSténdéxjrds specified under section 133 of the
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Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain prolessional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations,or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion,
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of
section 143 of the Companies Aet, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a
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(b)

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable
that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which

to the best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesajd standalone financial statements comply with

the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,

read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as
amended.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on

(h)

31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, no remuneration is paid by the Company to its

directors during the year and hence this Para is not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including

derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (*Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.
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e, The company has not proposed any dividend during the year in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company
has used certain accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) and the
same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been

preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.102105W

(Dglf(o‘}“”';;‘ .-

Deepak S. Koranne

Partner

Membership No.: 130413
UDIN: 25130413BMOYGA3300
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13th May, 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of Transindia Freight Services Private Limited (the “Company”) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025, we report that:

() In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
a) A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property Plant &
Equipment and Investment Property.

B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets hence reporting
under sub clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.

The Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property were
physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment
Property at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The Company holds immovable properties in its own name.

The Company has not revalued any of its Investment Property during the
year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at 2025 for holding any benami property under

the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(ii) a) The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories
Thus, para 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point
of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial
institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not granted
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Consequently, the provisions of para 3(ii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d),
3(iii}(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not given
loans, guarantees, and security, or invested in other companies covered
under section 185 and 186 during the vear under audit. Consequently,
provision of para 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public nor
accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of section 73 or 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi} The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the
Company.

(vii)In respect of its statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is normally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund,
Income Tax, Service Tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to it. There are no outstanding statutory
dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
disputed dues of income tax, GST which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the

basis of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence
para 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any short term funds during the year hence,
the requirement to report on para 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{¢) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(fy The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence para
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the vyear.
Accordingly, para 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares. Accordingly, para 3(x)(b} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the
year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As informed by the management, no whistle-blower complaints received
during the year by the Company.
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(xii)

(xii)

(xiv}

(xvi)

(xvii)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of the

Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, para 3(x1i) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not
have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

On the basis of information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on para 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) There is no core investment ctompany as a part of the Group {as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly para 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred Cash Losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company

(xix)

during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities and our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We however, state that this is not.an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
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to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management and our examination of books of account, provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, para 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.102105W

@.Srkfbﬁb‘*’;?'"

Deepak S. Koranne

Partner

Membership No.: 130413
UDIN: 25130413BMOYGA3300
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13th May, 2025
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Transindia Freight Services Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March,
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

1. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note?)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
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controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

3. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

4. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
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fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March,2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.102105W

D

8, Kagar

Deepak S. Koranne

Partner

Membership No.: 130413
UDIN: 25130413BMOYGA3300
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13th May, 2025
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Transindia Freight Services Private
Limited

Standalone financials

Year ended 31st March, 2025
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Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Regd office :Survey No. 123/12(4)/A, Village Kolke, Opp. T.1L Gld Mumbai Pune Road, Phalspa Pata, Panvel, Navi Mumbai- 410206

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025

{Rs in '000)
Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Property, Plant & equipment 2(0 - - -
Investment Property 2(ii) 26,486.13 27.127.83 27,770.00
Financial assets
Other Financial Assets 3 85.00 75.00 75.00
Non-current tax assets (net) 4(n) 21028 1,106.00 211.00
Deferred Tax Assets 4(b) 1,139.38 1,251,87 251679
Other non-current assets 5 117.58 = S
Tatal - Non-current assets 28,038.37 29,560.70 30,572.79
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade Receivahles 202.50 101.00 101,00
Cash and cash equivalents 7 571.37 522.60 623.00
Other Current assets 8 4528 23.00 15.00
Total - Current assets 819.15 646.00 739.00
Total Assets 28,857.53 30,206.70 31,311.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 4,060.00 4,060.00 4,060.00
Other equity 19 12,53333 12,643.70 9,250,79
Total Equity 16,593.33 16,703.70 13,310.79
Non-Current liabilities
Financial lizbilities
Long term Borrowings 12 10,856.01 - -
Other Financial Ligbilizes 12 790.64 - 963.00
Other Non Current Liabilities 13 240.65 - 78.00
Total Non-Current liabilities 11,887.30 - 1,041.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 B 12,255.00 16,755 00
Trade payables 14
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal? enterprises 172.80 10500 100.00
Other payables 15 93.75 - -
Cther Financial Liabilities 16 9.91 1.041,00 E
Other Current ltabilities 17 100 44 102.00 105,00
Tatal Current liabilities 376.90 13,503.00 16,960.00
Total equity and liabilities 28,857.53 30,206.70 31,311.79
Material accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 2.37
The notes referred te above are an integral part of these financiat statements
As per our report of even date attached
For C C Dangi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Transindia Freight Services PvtjLtd
[CAI firm registration No. 102105W : Ua3090MHI995PTC095650

@-g'\‘(eﬁﬂﬂ,ﬁ—';ﬁf

Deepak S. Koranne
Partner

Mermbership No. 130413
Date - [3-May-2025
Place - Mumbai

n

Arathi Shetty
Director
DIN : 00088574




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(RS in '000)
Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 18 1,242.58 1,125.00
Other Income 19 [20.54 4,561.00
Total 1,363.12 5,686.00
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 20 253.41 169.00
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 21 642.09 642.09
Finance cost 22 77.74 78.00
Other expenses 23 388.27 138.00
Total 1,361.51 1,027.09
Profit / (Loss) before tax 1.61 4,658.91
Tax expense:
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 4 112.53 1,266.00
Total 112,53 1,266.00
Profit / (Loss) for the year (A) {110.92) 3,392.91
Other Comprehensive Income:
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B} - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A) + (B) (110.92) 3,392.91
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic & Diluted EPS ( in full rupees) 25 (0.27) 8.36
Material accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 2-37

The notes referred to above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For C C Dangi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Transindia Freight Services Pvt Ltd
ICALI firm registration No.102105W CIN : {J63090MH1995PTC095650

\

D.2. Ko_ﬂ?‘;g-

Deepak S. Koranne an Shetty Arathi Shetty\

Partner 5 Director
Membership No.130413 g V7444 DIN : 00088374
Date - 13-May-2025 - ay-2025

Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs in "000)

Particulars

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustiments to reconcile profit befare tax to net cash flows:
Bepreciation
Finance Cost

Working capital adjustments:

Decrease / (increase) in  Trade Receivables

Decrease / (increase) in Other Non Current and current assels
Decrease / (increase) in non current other financial assets

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables,other current labilities and other Financial Liabilities

(Decrease)/ Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)

Investing activities
Net cash flows from / (vsed in) investing activities (B)

Financing activities
Repayment of short term borrowings
Proceeds from long term borrowings

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening balance of ¢ash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end (Refer Note No.7)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
1.61 4.658.91
642.09 642.09
77.714 78.00
(101.50) -
(139.86) (9.00)
(10.00) 7
(11.18) (76.00)
93.75 -
552.64 5,294.00
895.72 (895.00)
1,448.36 4,399.00
(12,255.00) (4,500.00)
10,856.01 -
(1,398.99) (4,500.00)
49.37 (101.00)
522.00 623.00
571.37 522,00

As per our report of even date attached

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICALI firm registration No.102105W

!

DG Koprr="

Deepak S. Koranne
Partner

Membership No.130413
Date - 13-May-2025
Place - Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Transindia Freight Services Pvt Ltd
CIN : Us3090MH1995P TC095650

Ara
Director
DIN : 00088374




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2025

A |Equity Share Capital:

( Rs in '000)
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No's of shares Amount
Ags at 1st April, 2023 406,600 4,060
Issue of Share Capital - -
As at 31st March, 2024 406,000 4,060
Issue of Share Capital - -
As at 3]st March, 2025 406,000 4,060
B |Gther Equity:
For the year ended 31st March, 2025 { Rs in "000)
. Retained Total Other
Particulars ; :
earnings equity
As at 1st April, 2024 12,643.70 12,643.,70
Net Profit for the vear {110.92) (116.92)
Other comprehensive income - g
As at 31st March, 2025 12,533.33 12,533.33
For the Year ended March 31, 2024 ( Rs in '000)
. Retained Total Other
Particulars . .
earnings equity
As at 1st April, 2023 9,250.79 9,250.79
Net Profit for the year 3.392.91 3,392.91
Other comprehensive income - -
As at 31 March, 2024 12,643.70 12,643.70

As per our report of even date attached
For C C Dangi & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration No.102105W

D, <. KOW/

Deepak S. Koranne
Partner

Membership No.130413
Date - 13-May-2025
Place - Mumbai

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Transindia Freight Services Pvt Ltd
CIN : Us3090MH1995PTC095650

Date - 13-May-2025
Place - Mumbai
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Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2025
Corporate Information

Transindia Freight Services Private Limited {(hereinafter referred 1o as ‘Company’)
CIN No: U63090MH1995PTC095650, is engaged in the business of Leasing of land and Commercial Properties,
Logistics Park, Warehousing, real estate development and leasing activities and other related businesses. The

Company has its registered office at Survey No. 123/12(4)/A, Village Koike, Opp. T.I. Old Mumbai Pune Road.
Phalspa Pata, Panvel, Navi Mumbai- 410206,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a reselution of the Board of Directors on
13th May,2025,

Material accounting policies
Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS"} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 with effect from April 1, 2016. Previous periods have been restated to Ind AS. In accordance with Ind AS 10|
“First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”, the Company has presented a reconciliation from the
presentation of financial statements under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (A ccounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP™) to ind AS of Shareholders’ equity as at March 31, 2024 and April 1. 2023
and of the comprehensive net income for the year ended March 31, 2024.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rutles, 2015 {(as amended from
time to time) under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act’) and presentation requirements of Division

Il of Schedule i1l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the financial
statements,

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments). The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as going
concern. The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(INR “000) except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of
the previous period.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is treated as current when it is:

- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period,

All other liabilities as classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition/of assetsofor-processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve moriths as:itS'éperating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-crrent.assets and liabilities.



1.2

Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2025

Summary of material accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue as per the criteria laid down in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’. The revenue recognition is being done on satisfaction of performance obligations contained in the

contracts at a point in time and subsequently over time when the Company has enforceable right for payment for
performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products/services to customer in an amount that reflects
the transaction price i.c. consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products. The
amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of GST,

Income from Logistics Park
Rental income arising from leasing of warehouses is accounted on execution of lease agreements or contracts with
customers. The recognition of revenue is being done as per the transaction price mentioned against identified

Performance obligations (Fixed rentals) contained in agreements and the same is accounted on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Reimbursement of cost is recognized as income under the head Common Area Management (*CAM’) charges as

agreed and as mentioned in the agreements/contracts. Electricity and water charges are recovered based on actual
altocable/usage basis.

QOthers

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Interest income is included in finance incomme in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established ie in case of an
interim dividend when it is approved by the board of directors and in case of final dividend when it is approved by
sharecholders,,

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms,

Contract balances

Contract balances include trade receivables, contract assets and contract ljabilities.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage

of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables are separately disclosed in the
financial statements.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned censideration that is conditional.

Contraet liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the

payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract. -



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Taxes
Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be refunded from or paid to the
taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are in force ar the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside the
Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Management perjodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or Joss.

(ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the lemporary differences can be controlied
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate 1o income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Such deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Any improvments done to Freehold land is also included in the cost of asset,
Other property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Borrowing cost relating to acquisition of tangible assets which take substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use are atso included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise; when a'major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as 4 ceplacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statemertof profitand loss as incurred



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category Useful lives (in years) ]
Building 30 10 60 ]
Plant and machinery S5toI5 -
Heavy equipments 12
Furniture and fixtures S5to 10
Vehicles 810 10 ]
Computers Jtob B
Office equipments 5t07 -
Other tangible assets 3?7 -
Leasehold land 30
Leasehold improvements shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term not exceeding 10
years

The Company, based on internal assessment and management estimate, depreciates certain items of Heavy
Equipments and Office Equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used,

An item of property, plant and equipment and ary significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition

of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asser is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost includes purchase price, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. It also includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction prajects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property is required to be replaced and if the,
forms the integral part of the investment property, then the Company depreciates them over the remaining useful
lives. But if such parts are separately identifiable then Company depreciates them over the specific useful life. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

[nvestment Property Under Development includes accumulated cost incurred for purchases/construction/improvement

of property including allocation of indirect cost and borrowing cost net of income from temporary investments of
surplus funds.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category Useful lives (in years) | — —
Building 30

Plant and machinery 15 e —

Office Equipment 10

Leasehold land 30

Leasehold improvements shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the
lecase term not exceeding 10 vears

Investment properties are measured initially and subsequently at cost, though the Company measures investment
property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair valucs are
determined based on an annual evaluation performad by, an agcredited external independent valuer or on the basis of
appropriate ready reckoner value or based on recent market transactions.



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of
derecognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use, Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property
transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortisation of ancillary cost over the period of loans which are incurred in
conngction with arrangements of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Commencement, cessation and suspension of capitalisation
Borrowing costs incurred are capitalised to the cost of asset if following conditions are satisfied:

a) Asset is a qualifying asset- A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use,

b) Intended use of asset (end use). If asset hold is used for -
- For the owner’s business occupation, it will be recognised as a part of PPE,
- For rental/annuity purposes, it will be recognised as investment property.

¢) The activities related to the acquisition, construction, and production of a qualifying asset that necessarily require a
substantial period of time to bring the asset to its intended use are in progress,

Borrowing costs shall cease to be capitalised when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifving
asset for its intended use are complete. However, borrowing cost incurred while asset acquired for specific purposcs is
held without any associated development activity do not qualify for capitalisation,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, Or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short term leases and
leases of low value assets. On the commencement of the lease, the Company, in its Balance Sheet, recognises the right

of use asset at cost and lease liability at present value of the lease payments to be made over the non-cancellable lease
term.

Subsequently, the right of use asset are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Lease liability are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payment
made, are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of lease liability and are recognised as expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Lease deposits given are a financial asset and are measured at amortised cost under [nd AS 109 since it satisfies
Soiely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) condition. The difference between the present value and the nominal
value of deposit is considered as prepaid rent and recognised over the non-cancellable lease term. Unwinding of
discount is treated as finance income and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2025

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents arc
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Com pany’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects.
when appropriate, the risks specific to the [iability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extreme rare cases where there is a fliability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recoghise a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus in the case of linancial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in lollowing four categories;
- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL,)

- LEquity investments



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

i.  Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met —

- These assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI} on the principal amount cutstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and toss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are classified as FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met;

- These assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding,

Fair value movements are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset.

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

iti. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual categery for debt instruments. Any financial assets. which do not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, are classified as FVTPL. Gain or losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL and any changes in its values are recognised through the statement of profit and
loss.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument.
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss.
even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

The Company makes election whether to classify the equity instruments as FVTPL or FVTOCI on instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initjal recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity investments made by the Company in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment loss (if any).
Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when:

- Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a} the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset

But when it has neither transferred nor retained substaritially all'of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognisei ‘the -transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also'recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that teflects the fights and obligations that the Company has retained.



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which are not fair valued through statement of profit and loss.
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount cqual to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and
foss.

As a practical expedient, The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates aver the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL is recognised based on assessment of credit risk and since credit risk is low in case of related party. Hence ECL,
not recognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost of disposals and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset aver its remaining useful life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for the Company Cash Generating Unit’s (CGU) to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of 5 years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the 5th year. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit
and Loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, nel
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and qther payables, foans and borrowings including bank overdrafis,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments;
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new tiability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts

or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated in the
Cash flow statement.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equiry holders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of the year artributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the vear are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the
financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025,
MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f 01 April 2024, The Company has reviewed the new

pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any impact in its financial
statements.
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Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions;

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. Some of the significant accounting judgement and estimates are given below:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options —~ Com pany as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is. it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its contral and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or (0
terminate,

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of inferest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are avajlable, The Company estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful fives and residual values of Company assets are delermined
by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

Investment property

Investment property represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company assets arc determined by
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives
are based on historical experience with similar assets.



Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

2 (i) Property, Plant & equipment (Rs in '000)

Description Plant and equipment Total

Gross Block
Balance as at 01 April 2023 2,280.62 2,280.62
Additions B B
Deletion - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,280.62 2.280.62
Additions - -
Deletion - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,280.62 2,280.62

Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2023 2,280.62 2,230.62

Depreciation for the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,280.62 2,280.62
Depreciation for the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,280.62 2,280.62
Net Block
As at 01 April 2023 . e
As at 31 March 2024 = :
As at 31 March 2025 -
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Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Investment Property {Rs in "000)
Description Building Furniture & Fixtures Total
Gross Block

Balance as at 01 April 2023 34,514.01 1,053.00 35,567.02
Additions - - -
Deletion - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 34,514.01 1,053.00 35,567.02
Additions - - -
Deletion - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 34,514.01 1,053.00 35,567.02
Depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2023 6,744.09 1,053.00 7,797.09
Depreciation for the year 642.09 - 642.09
Balance as at 31 March 2024 7,386.18 1,053.00 8,439.18
Depreciation for the year 642.09 - 642.09
Balance as at 31 March 2025 8,027,88 1,053.00 9,081.27
Net Block

As at 01 April 2023 27,770.00 - 27,770.00
As at 31 March 2024 27,127.83 - 27,127.83
As at 31 March 2025 26,486.13 - 26,486.13

Information regarding Income and Expenditure of Investment Property

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Rental income arising from Investment properties before depreciation 1,242 .58 1,125.00
Less : Direct Operating Cost 253.41 169.00
Less : Depreciation 642.09 642.09
Rental income arising from Investment properties 347.08 313.91

Fair valuation

As at 31st March 2025, the fair value of the investment properties amounts to Rs.67,800 (in thousands). The valuation was
performed by an accredited independent valuer as on 18th May 2024. The management believes that there has been no significant
change in the fair value of the properties as at the reporting date. The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its

investment properties.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Noa-current tax Assets {nef)

(Rs in "000)

4(a) Non-turrent tax Assets (net)
Particutars

Advance tax recoverable (net of provision For tax)

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

Current income tax;

Cureent income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
[ncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Accounting profit befare income tax

At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17 %,

Compuoted tax expenses

Deferred Tax assets not created on Business loss and unabsorbed
Depreciation to be carried forward 1o next year

Expensas altowed for tax purpose

Expenses not allowed for tax purpose

Set off against camied forward lossess

Intome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

4(b} Deferred Tax Assets

Detorred tax relates 1o the following

Business loss to be C/f

WDV of Fixed Assets

Other adjustments

Deferred Lease income (8D taken |
Security deposits received

Rent [ncome Straightlining
Deferred tax expense/(income)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets))
Less MAT Credit entitlement

Net deferred tax linbilities/(assets)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax lebilities
Deferved tax assets (nef)

Reconcitintion of deferred tax assets (ned):

Opening balance as of 1 April,
Tax expense/(income) during the vear recognised in profit or loss
Closing balance a3 at 31 March

Al the effective income tax rate as on 31.03.2025 is 69.80% & 31.03.2024 is 27.17%

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Of April 2023

21028 1,106.00 211

210.25 1.166.00 211,00

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

11253 1.266.00
112,53 1,266.00

31 March 2023 31 March 2024

161 1,658.91
041 117255
15160 161,60
(72813 72 20)
2333 411
11253 1,266,00
112,53 1,266.00

{ Rs in "000)

Balance Sheet

Balnsice Sheet

Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Profit and Loss

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

01 April 2023 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

903.77 93632 2,146.53 32.60 1,211 28
268,60 31558 371,77 4698 36.19
30,76 (0.04) {151 (80.80) (1.47)
(84.15) - 8415 -
(29 59) - 20 59 .
- ]‘_"eq._lll'
1,139.38 1,251 .87 251679 - -
1,139.38 1,251.87 2.516.7% - -

31 March 2025 31 Mazch 2024 01 April 2023

Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Profit and Loss

1,25313 1,251.91 251830
(113,75) (0.04) (1,51)
1,139.38 1.251.87 2.516.79

31 March 2028 31 March 2024
1.251.87 251679
112.53 1,266.00

1.139,38 1,251.87




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

{Rs in "0060)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Finaneial Assets
Other financial asset at amortised cost
3 Other Financial Assets
Security depasits
Unsecured considered good 85.00 75.00 75.00
85.00 75.00 7500
)
§  Other Non Current Assets
Lease equilisation reserve 117 38 - -
117.58 S =
6 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good unfess stated otherwse)
Trade Receivables
Regeivables from related parties (refer note 29) 202 50 101.00 101.00
202.50 101.00 101.00
——

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person Further No trade receivables are due from firms or
private companies in which any director 1s a partner or a director or a member.

Ageing of Trade Receivables and credit risk arising there from is as below:
As at March 31, 2025

P e - f 1 e
Particulras Current bat nat dus Oattstanding for following periods from due date of invoice Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 vears
Undisputed- Trads Recervable considered pood o 202.50 = . N 20250
As at March 31, 2025 - 202.50 - - - 202.50
As at March 31,2024
tstandi - ing periods fy invoi
Particulras CurrentButnotdia Outstanding fov lollewing periods from due date of invoice Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 3-3 years Maore than 3 years
Undisputed— Trade Recervahle considered good = 101 00 = - - 101.00
As at March 31, 2024 - 101.060 - - - 101.00
As at April 1, 2023
Farficulr Current but not d OQutstanding for following periods from due date of invoice Total
APHEUIERS N Lass than 1 Year 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed- Trade Receivable considered good - 101.00 - - - 101.00
As at April 1, 2023 - 104.00 = - - 101.00
7  Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents 1956 40 .00 40,00
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 53181 482 00 583.00
571.37 522.00 _ 623.00 |
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and eash equivalents comprise the following:
Balanees with banks:
- Om carrent sccounts 531.81 482.00 583,00
Cash on hand 3%.56 40.00 40.00
571.37 522,00 623.00
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 01-Apr-24 Cashflows Others* 31-Mar-25
Lean from Related Party - 10,856.01 - 10,856.01
Loan from Related Party 12,255,00 (12,255.00) - -
Taotal liabilities from financing activities 12,255.00 (1,398.99) - 10,856.01
Particulars 01-Apr-23 Cashflows Others* 31-Mar-24
Loan from Related Party 16,755.00 (4,500.00) 1225500
Tatal liabilities from financing activities 16,755.00 (4,500.00) - 12,255.00
8 Other Current Assets
Advances for supply of services 1a50 B E
Prepaw Expense 21.45 13.00
Balance with Government Authorities 12.93 . 2.00
45.28 i 2] 5.00
\x '_ 5 } .;
\ I
o y
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(Rg in "000)

9 Share capital

Authorised capital:

Eguity shares

. Amount

No's of shares ( s in '000)
At O1st April 2023 500,000.00 5,000.00
Increase / (Decrease) during the yvear . -
At 31 March 2024 500,000.00 5,800.00
Increase | (Decrease) during the period 5 L
At 31 March 2025 500,000,{H) 5,000.00
Tssued, subscribed and fully paid-ap: No's of shares f R‘:':;ﬂ,l:]::})
At OFst April 2023 406,000 4,060.00
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2024 406,000 4,060.00
Increase | (Decrease) during the period - -
At 31 March 2025 406,000 4,060.00

Terms/ vights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share Each holder of equity

dividend as declared from time to time

In: the event of hquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaming assets of the Company. after distribution of alt preferential amounts. The

distribution will be m proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(i) Details of sharehiolders holding mare than 3% shares of the Company

shares is entitled to one vote per share, The equily shares arc entitled to receive

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

. p . i —

Name of shareholders No's of % holding in the No's of shares % haiding in the
shares class elags

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid

Transindia Real Estate Limited (Holding Company)* 405,999 100% E -

Shashi Kiran Shetty e 402 700 99%
* During the year Transindia Real Estate Ltd {"TREL ") has acquired 100% equity shareholding 1n Transindia Freight Services Private Limited (“TFSPL" ), pursuant to the Sharc Purchase
Agreement executed with Mr Shashi Kiran Shetty and Mrs Arathi Sherry. Following this acqusition, TFSPL has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the TREL with effect from 01
September 2024,
(it) Reconciliation of number of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year;
Particulars As at 31at March, 2025 As at 313t March, 2024
No's of Amount Amount
Equi 's of sh
quity Shares e ( Rs in '000) No's of shares { Bs in '000)
At the beginning of the year 406,000 4,060.00 406,000 4,060 00
Issued during the year = - . i
Outstanding at the end of the year 406,000 4,064.00 406,000 4,060.00
(i} Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates
Equity Sharea| Equity Shares with Compulsorily Optionally
Particulars with voting | differential voting comvertible convertihle
rights. rights preference shares | preference shares
Number of Shares
31st March, 2025
Transindia Rea] Estate Limited (Holding Company) 405,959 | | [
Equity Shares| Equity Shaves with Compulsorily Optionally
Particulars with voting | differential voting convertible convertible
rights _rights preference shares | preference ghares
Number of Shares
315t March, 2024
Shashi K.iran Sheiry 402.700 | i
{iv) Details of Promoter Shareholding
As at 31st March, 2025
Sr.Ne. Particulars Name of Promoter | No. of Shares at | Change [No. of Shares at % of Total Sharcs| % Change during
the beginning of | during the |the end of the year the year
the year year
: Transindia Real
o 10
1 Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid Estate Limired T 405.999 100.00% 100.00%
2 Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid Shashi Kiran Shetty 402700 (402,700} - 0.00% -99.19%
3 Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid Arathu Sherry 3,300 {3,300} - 0.00% -0.81%
As at 31st March, 2024
Sr.No, Particulars Name of Promoter | Mo, of Shares at | Change [No. of Shares at % of Total Shares| % Change during|
the beginning of | during the |the end of the year the year
the year year
1 Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid Shashi Kiran Shetty 462700 - 402700
2 Equity Shares of INR 10 each fuily paid 3500 - 3300

Arathi Shetty




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Naotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

{Rs in '000)

13 Other equity

Surplus in Statement of profit & loss account (Refer Faot note a}

Opening balance
Profit / {Loss) during the year
Net Surplus / {Deficit) in the statement of profit & loss account

WNature and purpose of reserves
A) Retained earnings -Surplus in Statement of profit & loss accaunt

Retained eamings represents ull accumulated net income netted by all dividens paid to sharshalders

Effective

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

12,643 70 0.350,79
(110,92} 330201
12,533,335 12,643.70

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

0 April 2023

11  Borrowings interest rate
Yo
Non-current borrowings
Other borrowings (unsecared)
Loan from Related Party 9.28% 10,856.01 -
Total non-current borrowings 10,856.01 - -
Aggregate secured losns - - -
Aggregale unsecured loans 10,856.01 - -
10,856.01 - =
Loan from Related Party
Loan from Transindia Real Estate Limited carry interest rate at the rate of 9.28%,
The Eolding Company shall revise the interest rate based on a benchmarkmg exereise that the Holding
Company will carry out on: an annual basis
The loan 1s repayable over a period of 5 vears
Current borrowings
Other berrowings (unsecured)
Loan from Related Party
Loan from Mr Shashi Kiran Shetty repayable on demand - 12,255.00 16,755.00
- 12,255.00 16,755.00
Total current borrowings
Aggregate secured loans - = 5
Aggregate unsecured loans - 12,255.00 16,755 00
- 12,255.00 16,755.00
12 Other financial liabilities (Non current)
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Segqurity Deposits considred good
With Related Party 790 64 - 963.00
Total other financial liabilities 790.64 - 963.00
13 Other Now turrent Liabilities
Deferred Lease income 240,65 - 78.00
246,65 - 78.00
14 Trade Payabley
Trade Payable
a} Total outstanding dues of micro emetprises and small enterprises - - -
b) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 172.80 10500 100 00
172.80 166.00
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15

17

Trade Payables Ageing:

As at 31 March 2025

(Rs in '000)

Particulars

Quistanding for follawin

periods from the tr

ilate

Current but not due

Less than 1 year

1 -2 years

2-3 Years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micrg ettterprises and smali enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises

91 80

&1 00

172.80

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Current but not due

Dutstanding for following periods from the (ransaction date

Less than 1 year

I -2 years

2-3 Years

Mare thaw 3 years

Toral

Total outstandmg dues of micro enterprses and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other thay micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Disputed dues of micio enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

105.00

105,00

185.00

As at 1 April 2023

Particulars

Current but not due

Outstanding for fellowing

2 perisds from the transaction date

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 Years

More than 3 years

Toral

Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Dhsputed daes of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of credilors other than micre enterprises and small
enterprises

100.00

100.00

100.60

Other Payables
Provision for expenses

Other Financial Liabilities
Secunity Deposits recerved from Related Party
Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Other current lishilities
Statutory dues payable
GST payable
TDS payable
Deferred lease income

93 75

93.75

991

1.041.00

9,91

1,041.00

20,22
80.22

1600
1100
73.00

10044

105.00




Transindia Freight Services Private Limited

Notes to Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(Rs in '000)

Particulars

31 Mareh 2025

3t March 2024

18 Revenue from operations
Warehousing rental income

The revenue maninly represents confract price and there is no maierial

difference between the contracted price and revenue from contracts with
custmers.

18.1 Geographical markets

Sale of Services - India

Sale of Services - Qutside India

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers
18,2 Revenue recognition
Services recognised on time
Services recognised over time
Total Revenue from Contract with Customers
18.3 Contract balanees
Trade receivables

19 Other Income
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Income from Maturity of keyman Insurance Policy
Operating lease income

20 Cost of services rendered
Property tax
Water charges
Insurance Charges

21 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on Investment Properties

22 Finance Cost
interest on Leases obligation

Interest on Loan to related party

23 Other expenses
Legal and professional fees
Rates & Taxes
Office expenses
Payment to auditors (refer note below)
Insurance
Bank charges
Busingss Support Charges Exps
Loss on termination of lease
Miscellangous expenses

Payments to the auditor:
As auditor
Statutory Audit fee
Limited Review Fees

1.242.58 1.125.00
1,242.58 1,125.00
1.242.58 [.125.00
1,242.58 1,125.00
1.242.58 1.125.00
1,242.58 1,125.00
202.50 101.00
202.50 101.00
4().32 5.00
- 4.47R.00
80.22 78.00
120.54 4,561.00
160,71 169.00
77.00 -
15,71 -
253.41 169.00
642.09 642.ntL
642.09 642.09
66.73 78.00
11.01 -
77.74 78.00
175.50 75.00
2743 5,00
= 10,00
150,00 25400
- 16.00)
- 2.00
29.17 -
6.14 -
0.03 5.00
388.27 138.00
110.00 25.00
40.00
150.00 25.00
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Reconcilintion of Balancesheet as at 1 April 2023

(R in '000)
. Regrouped ;
Particula
N ar rs Indian CAAP Adjustment INDAS
Non-Current assets
Investment Property 27.770.00 . 27.770.00
Financial assets
Other Financial Assets 75.00 - 7500
Noun-current tax assets (nef) 21100 - 211,00
Deferred Tax Assets 2.518.58 (1.79) 2,516.79
Total - Non-current assets 30,574.58 {L.79) 30,572.79
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 101.00 - 101.c0
Cash and cash equivalents 623.00 - 623.00
Other Current assets 15.00 - 15.00
Total - Corrent assets 739.00 - 739.00
Total Assets 31,313.58 {1.79) 31.311.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eqguity
Equity share capiral 4.060.00 M 4.060.00
Other equity 9,246.58 421 9,250.79
Total Equity 13,306,58 4.21 13,310.79
Non-Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Other Financial Liabiliies 1.125.01 (162.01} 963.08
Other Non Current Liabilities - 78.00 78.00
Total Non-Current liabilities 1,125.01 {84.01) 1,041.00
Current Habilities
Financial liabilities
Bormrowings 16,755.00 - 16,755.00
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micru enterprises and small enrerprises - & -
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises aud small enterprises 100.00 - 10000
Other Current Jiabilities 26.99 7801 10500
Total Current liabilities 16,381.99 78.01 16,960.00
Total equity and liahilities 31,313.58 {179 31,311.79
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Reconciliation of Balancesheet as at 31 March 2024

(Rs in '000)
Particulars Regrouge Adjustment INDAS
Indian GAAP 2
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Investment Property 27,127.85 0.00 27,127.83
Financial assets
Otlrer Finangial Assets 73,00 - 75 00
Non-current tax assets (net) L 106.00 - 1,106.00
Deferred Tax Assets 1,254.00 {2.13) 1,251.87
Total - Non-current assets 29,562.83 {2.13) 29.560.70
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 101.08 - 1¢1.00
Cash and cash equivalents 522.00 & 521.00
Other Current assets 23.00 - 23.00
Total - Current assets 646,00 - 646,00
Total Assets 30,208.83 (2.13) 30,206.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 4.060.00 B 4.060.00
Other equity 12 640.83 2.87 1264370
Equity atfributable to equity holders of the parent 16,700.83 2.87 16,703,70
Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12,255.00 - 12,255.00
Trade payables
a} Total outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enterprises - = =
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 105.00 - 105,00
Other Financial Liabilities 1,125.00 (84,00 1,041,00
Cther Current liabilities 23.00 79.00 102.60
‘Total Current liabilities 13,508.00 {5.00) 13,503.00
Taotal equity and Labiliiies 30,208.83 {2.13) 30,206,706
Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rs in "000)
" Regrouped .
Particulars Adjustment INDAS
8 Indian GAAP o
Income
Revenue from operations 1,125.00 - 1.125.00
Other Income 4,482.37 TR.63 4,561.00
5,607.37 78.63 5,686.00
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 169.00 : 169.00
Depreciation and amortisation expznses 042.00 0.09 642.09
Finange cost - 78.00 78,00
Other expenses 138.00 - 138.00
949,00 78.0% 1,027.00
Profit / (Loss) before tax 4,658,37 0.54 4,659.00
Tax expense:
Current tax = - -
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 1,263 Y6 0.04 1,266.00
Total 1,265.96 0.04 1,266.00
Profit / (Loss) for the year (A} 3,392.41 0.50 3,393.00
Other Comprehensive fncome;
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss = - o
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year {B) - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A) +(B) 3,392.41
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 81 April 2023 (date of transition) and 31 March 2024 and profit/loss for the year ended
31 March 2024:

1. Fair valuation of Rental Security Deposits (SD) Received from tenants -

The Company has fair valued its SD in the financial statements as per the requirements of Ind AS 109 "Financial instruments” The difference in Onginal amount of
Security deposit given and its present value (PV) at the date of inception which is calceulated at Effoctive Interest Rate (E1R) method has bean accounted as deferred leas:
ncome in the financial statements. As on 31 March 2024, the Company has amortised Rs.78 02 thousands through profit and loss,

Similarly notional Interest expense al EIR method has been caleulated on (he PV of 81D amount As on 31 March 2024, the Company has accounted Rs 78 (in thousands
as a notional interest expense and recognised 1t through profit and loss,

2, Deferred tax :-

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which Focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the
period fnd AS 12 requires entities to account For deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount
of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary
differences whick was not required under Indian GAAP

In uddition, the varicus transitional adfustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the company has to account for such dillerences,

Deferred tax adjustmenss are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction eithier in retained earnings or a separate component of equity. For the financial year
31 March 2024, Rs.1,206 thousands deferred tax was recognised through proEt and loss

3. Other Adjustments mainly consists of amortization of deferred lease income on security deposits received
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Note 25:- Ratio Analysis

Rutio Numerator Denominator 3E-Mnr—§;m]]-Mar-24 % Change Reason for variance

Current ratia Current Assets Current Liabilines 217 0.03 4442.95%{ During the year, the Company ropaid a shert-
term loan, resulting in a reduction in cutrent
ligilitics, which led 1o a positive movement in
the current ratio

Debt - Equity ratio Tomwml Debt Sharcholdur’s Equir, 0.65 0.73 =11).75%]

Debe servies eoverage ratio Earmings for debt service = Debi service = ns 0.90 <44 50%| During, the previcus year, the Company weccived
Mot profit after taxes -+ Non-cosh operating Interest & Lease Pavments + Prncipal progeeds fram the maturity of a kevman
expenses-+Finance Cost Repayments insurance policy, resulting in higher profit

compared 1o the curtent year. Additionally,
duning the current year, the Company repaid
) short-term loans.

Raturn en Equity ratio Net Profits afler taves - Preference Dividend  JAverage Sharcholder s Equiny E 023 -102.95%|The change in the ratio is priniasly on aceount o
= decrease in profis during the current veur, as
the previous vear included one-time income from
the maturity of a keyman insurance policy.

Inventory tumover ratic Cost of gocds sald Avermge [nventen N.A NA NA;

I Trade Recgivables turnover ratio et credit salos < Gross eredit sales - sales return[Average Trade Receivable 819 11.14 =26 49%5| The Trade Reccivables Turnaver Ratig has
dielined compared 1o the previaus vear, primarn
duy to an increase in trade roevivables during thel
curnent vear

Trade pavables tumover ratio Net credit purchasus = Giross oredit purchases - |Average Trade Pasables 1.82 1.63 JUEAH
purchase return

Mot capital amover mitio Net sales = Total sales - sales relum Working capital = Curront assets - Coment 0.34 001} -4467 92%| During the year, the Company repaid a short-

Itabilitics term loag, eesulting in z reduction 10 current
liabulities. This led to an inerease in worling
capital, which in tum caused a significant declin
in the Net Capital Turnover Ratio as compared
to the previvus vear

Net profit ratio Nt Profit Net sales = Total sajes - sales retam =0.0% 302 =102.96%| The deeline in the Net Profit Ratia is primarily
chue 10 a reduction in profit during the current
vear In the previous vear, the Company had
recordid one-time income from the maturity of
feyman sarance policy, which significantly
contributed to higher profit

Return on Capital employed 1Eamings before interest and taxes Capital Employed = Tangible Nt Worth 0.29% 16.36% -08.33%| The change in the ratic is primarily on account of

Total Debt + Deferred Tax a decrense in profit during the curmont vear.

Liability

Betum on [nvestment Interest {Finanee Income’ Investmen! N.A N.A N.AJ
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26. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders
of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity

27.

28.

shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

( Rs in “000)

Particulars 31 March | 31 March,
2025 2024

Net Profit/(toss) after tax attributable o Equity Shareholders {110.92) 3,393

Weighted average and outstanding number of Equity shares for 4,06.000 4,06,000

basic and diluted EPS

Basic EPS & Diluted ( in full rupees) (0.27) 8.36

Commitments and contingencies

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities as on reporting date.

Dues to Micro and small Suppliers

Certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006 (MSMED). On the basis of the information and records available with the
Company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro and Small Enterprises.
The information given is based on the information available with the Company and has been relied upon
by the auditors.

{Rs in ‘000)

Particulars 31 March, 31 March,

2025 2024
Principa] amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end. Nil Nil
Interest due thereon il Hil
Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil
MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year.
Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED.
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the Nil Nil
accounting year,
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowances as a
deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006
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29. Related Party Transactions

List of Related Parties and Relationships

Holding Company
Transindia Real Estate Limited (w.e.f. 15 September,2024)

Companies coming under common Promoter group

Sr. Entity Name
No.
1 Allcargo Corporate Services Private Limited
2 Allcargo Logistics Ltd
Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. Name
No.
1 Mr. Adarsh Sudhakar Hedge — Director
| 2 Mrs. Arathi Shetty- Director
3 Mr. Vaishnav Kiran Shashikiran Shetty - Director
4. Mr. Shashikiran Shetty - Promoter

a} Transaction with Related Party

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length
transactions. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivabies or
payables. For the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates..

{Rs in “000)

Name of Party Nature of transaction 31 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2024

Borrowings
Opening balance - -
Borrowings Received 10856.10 -
Borrowings Repaid - -
Closing Balance 10856.10 -

T indi | Estat

L:.;':ts‘:g i Redl Estate Closing Balance of Interest Payable 9.9 -
Other Payable (Provision for
Expenses) 26.25 -
Interest Expense 11.01 -
Business Support Charges 29,17 -
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Name of Party Nature of transaction 31 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2024
Opening Balance 12.255.00 16,755.00
Loan taken during the year E -
Shashi Kiran Shetty Loan repaid during the year {12,255.00) (4500.00)
Closing Balance - 12,255.00
Rent Income 1125.00 -
Alleargo Corporate Services | Trade Receivable 202.50 -
Private Limited
Security Deposit Payable 1125.00 -
Rent Income - 1125.00
Allcarge Logistics Limited Trade Receivable - 101.00
Security Deposit Payable - 1125.00

30. Segment Reporting

The Company’s main business activity constitutes developing, constructing and leasing warehouse,
which is the only reporting segment. The Company does not have any reportable geographical

segment.

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

®

(i)

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential
adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk assessment and
policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the
policies and processes. Risk assessment and policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and
the management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and policies and
processes.

Market Risk:
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result
from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates ) or in the price of market
risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market
risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments and all short term and long-
term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to interest rate risk. Thus, the
Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of borrowing activities and it’s revenue
generating and operating activities.




(iii)

(iv)

Transindia Freight Services Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended 315 March, 2025

Interest Rate Risk —

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s external long-term debt
obligations with fixed interest rates. The Company’s policy is to keep maximum of its borrowings
at fixed rates of interest.

Interest Rate sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates

on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected as follows:

{Rs in “0040)
Particulars Increase/decrease in Effect on profit/(loss)
basis points before tax
Unsecured Loan from Related Party +100 1.19
(100) (1.19)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the
currently observable market environment.

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
depaosits with banks and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables: Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer
is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed
at each reporting date on an individual basis for the customers. The Company has obtained
security deposit from the customer as per the agreement.

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of intercompany loans and issued debentures. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities as at 3 1st March 2025:

{Rs in ‘000)
Particulars On Demand Less than | year More than 1 year
Borrowings - 10,856.01

Trade and other payables - 266.55 -

Other Financial Liabilities . 9.91 -
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities as at 31st March 2024:

{Rs in ‘000)
Particulars On Demand Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings - 12,255.00
Trade and other payables - 105.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities - 1041.00 -

32. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity,
internal accruals, long term borrowings and short term borrowings.

33. Fair value
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

I Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables. trade payables,
other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on
parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter party. Based on this
evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data

34. Note on Audit Trail and on Back up Compliances

During the current year, Transindia Real Estate Limited (“TRL") acquired 100% controlling interest in
Transindia Freight Services Private Limited (“TFSPL”). Following the acquisition. the books of account
of TFSPL were migrated to the accounting software currently in use by TRL. Both the previous and
current accounting software systems are equipped with an audit trail (edit log) feature, which was
operational throughout the respective periods during the year for all relevant transactions. Furthermore,
there were no instances of tampering or disabling of the audit trail feature in either of the accounting
systems. The audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention,
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35. Other Statutory Information

i)

if)

iii)

v)

vi)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has not entered any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

36. Events after reporting date:-

There are no significant subsequent events between the year ended March 31, 2025 and signing of the
financial staternents as on May 13, 2025 which have material impact on the financials of the Company.

37. Prior year comparatives: -
Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified whetever necessary to confirm to this year's
classification.
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